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          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's Finance Committee hearing.

          4                 My name is David Weprin, I chair this

          5  Committee. We have a number of members here and

          6  we're going to be joined by further members.

          7                 On my immediate left is Council

          8  Member Eva Moskowitz, who will be making a statement

          9  before we hear testimony on the Madison Avenue BID.

         10                 Next to her is our Majority Leader

         11  Council Member Joel Rivera, from the Bronx. And we

         12  have our Minority Leader Council Member Jim Oddo

         13  from Staten Island, and Council Member Mike McMahon

         14  from Staten Island. And on my immediate right is

         15  Counsel to the Finance Committee, Jim Caras, and we

         16  have Council Member Eric Gioia from Queens coming up

         17  now.

         18                 We have a number of items on our

         19  agenda. First we have a revenue budget modification.

         20  MN 4, from OMB. This budget mod seeks to increase

         21  revenues by over $1.4 billion for Fiscal 2004.

         22                 This amount includes an additional

         23  $786 million in tax revenue, and an additional $398

         24  million in unrestricted aid. The modification

         25  appropriates almost all this money to the budget
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          2  stabilization account.

          3                 We will vote on the budget mod after

          4  testimony from the Madison Avenue BID, which does

          5  not require a vote today.

          6                 We are also considering two items

          7  concerning Business Improvement Districts.

          8                 First, we have Intro. No. 282, which

          9  would expand the Madison Avenue Business Improvement

         10  District in Manhattan.

         11                 Today we will hear all those who may

         12  be affected by the extension of the BID who wish to

         13  speak, and then we will adjourn until the statutory

         14  objection period has run, before we actually act on

         15  the local law.

         16                 At the end of that period, we must be

         17  prepared to answer the following four questions in

         18  the affirmative, or we cannot approve the extension.

         19                 Question number one: Were all notices

         20  of hearings, for all hearings required to be held

         21  published and mailed as required by law and

         22  otherwise insufficient?

         23                 Question two: Does all the real

         24  property within the proposed extended district

         25  boundaries benefit from the extension of the
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          2  district, except as otherwise provided by the law?

          3                 Three: Is all real property

          4  benefitted by the extension included within the

          5  proposed extended district?

          6                 And four: Is the extension of the

          7  district in the best interest of the public?

          8                 If we can answer these four questions

          9  affirmatively and the requisite number of property

         10  owners do not object to the extension during the

         11  next 30 days, then the Committee can adopt the

         12  extension.

         13                 Today we will also consider

         14  resolution to set the date for a hearing at a local

         15  law authorizing budget increases for five BIDs?

         16                 The statute authorizing establishment

         17  of BIDs, and amendments to the plans by which they

         18  operate provide that the Council made by local law

         19  authorize increases to a BID annual budget?

         20                 Notices to be by publication;

         21  however, we have been asking the Department of

         22  Business Services to send notices by mail to all

         23  property owners in BIDs, when the BID is seeking an

         24  increase in its budget, and we will do the same in

         25  the case of these five BIDs.
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          2                 Finally, we have one Land Use item

          3  which would provide a partial tax exemption to

          4  Section 202 supportive housing projects for the

          5  elderly in Council Member Albert Vann's district,

          6  and Council Member Vann is in support of this

          7  project.

          8                 Okay, we'll hear from him before we

          9  vote on that. And we have Mr. Glatter from the

         10  Department of Small Business.

         11                 Before Mr. Glatter testifies, I'm

         12  just going to call upon my colleague, Council Member

         13  Eva Moskowitz for a brief statement on the Madison

         14  Avenue BID.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Chair. And thank you for this opportunity to

         17  make a restatement.

         18                 I would say that the answer to those

         19  four questions, we can answer all of them in the

         20  affirmative.

         21                 The Madison Avenue BID has made an

         22  incredible contribution to what I would argue is the

         23  premier shopping district, not only in New York but

         24  in the world. It has done an incredible job keeping

         25  our streets clean, but it hasn't been limited to
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          2  service, it's really engaged in marketing and all

          3  sorts of other types of activity.

          4                 And the shopping district does, you

          5  know, extend beyond 61st Street. So, I think this

          6  makes sense for a whole host of reasons and I'm very

          7  proud to represent this area and have worked with

          8  the BID since I was elected in 1999 and I would urge

          9  all of my colleagues to support this effort.

         10                 Thank you very, very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         12  Council Member Moskowitz.

         13                 Mr. Glatter.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Thank

         15  you.

         16                 Good morning, Chairman Weprin and

         17  members of the Finance Committee.

         18                 My name is George Glatter, I'm

         19  Assistant Commissioner at the Neighborhood

         20  Development Division of the Department of Small

         21  Business Services. And I'm joined on my right by Cie

         22  Mitica (phonetic), Project Manager for the Madison

         23  Avenue BID at SBS, and Ed Yang, Director of Services

         24  for BIDs at SBS.

         25                 SBS supports the expansion of the

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  Madison Avenue Business Improvement District in the

          3  Borough of Manhattan.

          4                 Geographically the existing BID

          5  includes properties located on Madison Avenue from

          6  60th to 86th Street on the West Side, and 61st to

          7  86th Street on the East Side.

          8                 The expansion area includes the East

          9  Side of Madison Avenue from 57th to 61st Street, and

         10  the West Side of Madison Avenue from 59th to 61st.

         11                 The BID will provide the same level

         12  of services to the expansion area as it does for the

         13  existing BID.

         14                 These services include sanitation,

         15  security, marketing, business advocacy, capital

         16  improvements and other services as may be required

         17  for the promotion and enhancement of the district.

         18                 The Madison Avenue District

         19  Management Association will manage the extended

         20  district. The budget for the first year of

         21  operation, following the approval of the expansion,

         22  is $1,757,000.

         23                 As required by the BID law, Madison

         24  Avenue District Management Association mailed a

         25  summary of the City Council resolution to each owner
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          2  of real property, both within the existing BID and

          3  the expansion area, at the address shown on the

          4  latest City assessment role. Persons are registered

          5  with the City to receive tax bills concerning real

          6  property within the City and to tenants within the

          7  district.

          8                 SBS arranged for the publication of a

          9  copy of the summary of the resolution in the City

         10  Record, also as required by the BID law.

         11                 In addition, we are submitting a new

         12  page 22 to replace a typographical error found on

         13  page 22 in the existing district plan.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Any questions?

         16  Any questions from any members?

         17                 As usual, Mr. Glatter, a very

         18  thorough presentation where nobody has any

         19  questions.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Thank

         21  you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We're now going

         23  to hear from other interested parties. But we're

         24  going to hear them as a panel, if they could all

         25  come up together.
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          2                 It's hard to read the handwriting

          3  here, but Matthew Bauer from Forest Hills. He

          4  represents the Madison Avenue -- he's the Executive

          5  Director.

          6                 Patricia Marti from Steuben Glass,

          7  and Joanne Porrazzo from Vornado Realty, if they can

          8  come up as a panel.

          9                 Why don't we do it in the order I

         10  called you.

         11                 MR. BAUER: Good morning, Chairperson

         12  Weprin and members of the Finance Committee. And a

         13  special good morning and thank you to my very own

         14  Council Member Eva Moskowitz.

         15                 We so much appreciate your leadership

         16  and all that you've done to support our efforts over

         17  the years.

         18                 I would first like to acknowledge all

         19  the many members of our Board of Directors that are

         20  actually sitting in the back of the room, and thank

         21  them for all of their efforts throughout the years

         22  of the Business Improvement District.

         23                 The Madison Avenue truly is one of

         24  the world's premiere luxury shopping districts, and

         25  our goal is to provide the stewardship necessary to
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          2  preserve Madison Avenue's many strengths to maintain

          3  its unique role in the marketplace, and we really

          4  feel that for New York City to be the capital of the

          5  world, it needs a place like Madison Avenue.

          6                 We decided to expand our boundaries,

          7  because we received many, many requests from the

          8  businesses and property owners south of 61st Street.

          9  They want our clean and safe programs, and they felt

         10  that it was strongly in their business interests to

         11  take part in our events, and with expansion we

         12  planned to extend services that we currently provide

         13  to these properties and businesses.

         14                 And the past few years the luxury

         15  shopping district of Madison Avenue extended south

         16  of 57th Street in spaces that formerly house

         17  establishments that serve the office population of

         18  Midtown.

         19                 This expansion therefore fills the

         20  gap potentially of where the Madison Avenue shopping

         21  district begins at East 57th Street, north to where

         22  the BID currently begins, which is either 61st

         23  Street or 60th Street, depending on the side of the

         24  block.

         25                 The buildings located in the
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          2  expansion area house businesses that share the same

          3  market niche as those currently located in the BID

          4  and every single building that had businesses

          5  participating in our programs wanted part of our

          6  programs in this expansion.

          7                 The businesses of the Madison Avenue

          8  BID expansion area have already started

          9  participating in our programs, and I just want to

         10  give you a couple of examples of that.

         11                 Our Fashion Meets Art event, which

         12  benefits the Whitney Museum of American Art and

         13  which was honored by the City with a neighborhood

         14  development award of distinction for marketing, has

         15  engaged 13 art galleries in the Fuller Building at

         16  595 Madison Avenue, to show their works in Madison

         17  Avenue Fashion Boutiques, and created an opportunity

         18  for Calvin Klein himself, the showcase works of his

         19  favorite photographer at his boutique at 654 Madison

         20  Avenue.

         21                 Our Pink Ribbon Project, which raised

         22  $180,000 for local breast cancer charities,

         23  including the breast cancer research foundation at

         24  654 Madison Avenue, create an opportunity for

         25  Demodlo (phonetic), which is at 635 Madison, to
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          2  promote a whole line of pink stone jewelry.

          3                 The Annual Miracle on Madison Event,

          4  which raises funds for the Children's AIDS Society,

          5  created the most successful selling night at DKNY at

          6  655 Madison Avenue and brought food to the

          7  restaurant Tau (phonetic), which is located at 42

          8  east 58th Street to our Taste of Madison Avenue

          9  tent. The launch of the Crystal District, which

         10  you'll hear in a moment about, and of the City's

         11  newest shopping destination, and engage competitors,

         12  Stueben and Glass at 667 Madison, Sirofski and Bocra

         13  (phonetic) at 625 Madison Avenue to work together,

         14  and our Wedding March on Madison Event, which took

         15  place in last September, brought nearly 800 brides

         16  from 33 states to Madison Avenue to take place in

         17  events held at Crate and Barrel, which is at 650

         18  Madison Avenue, and to have their hair restyled at

         19  Juliann Ferrel Salon (phonetic) at 605 Madison

         20  Avenue.

         21                 So, this expansion makes sense

         22  because it reflects the reality of what the

         23  boundaries are for the Madison Avenue shopping

         24  district, and represents the wishes of the Madison

         25  Avenue Business Community. And I'd be glad to answer
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          2  any questions you may have.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

          5                 Ms. Marti.

          6                 MS. MARTI: Good morning. It's my

          7  pleasure to be able to speak in support of the

          8  expansion of the Madison Avenue BID.

          9                 I represent Steuben Glass, which is

         10  now at 667 Madison Avenue, having moved from Fifth

         11  Avenue in 2000.

         12                 It's been my pleasure to be able to

         13  work with Matt Bauer and the BID administration in a

         14  number of marketing promotions, and not only is Matt

         15  wonderful to work with, highly organized, whenever

         16  the BID does something they do it extremely well.

         17  So, it is my pleasure to speak here today in support

         18  of the expansion of the BID. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. Ms.

         20  Porrazzo.

         21                 MS. PORRAZZO: Thank you. I, too, am

         22  here this morning to support the expansion of the

         23  BID.

         24                 I represent Vornado Realty which is

         25  the largest commercial property owner in Manhattan,
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          2  with over 18 buildings and 5 million square feet of

          3  space.

          4                 One of our buildings, the Fuller

          5  Building, at the corner of 57th and Madison is in

          6  the proposed expansion district, and we actually

          7  have been looking forward to this expansion going

          8  through for many years.

          9                 We worked on the Steering Committee

         10  of the East Midtown Association, and at the time

         11  that we were deciding on the boundaries for that

         12  BID, we had the option to put the Fuller Building

         13  into that BID or to wait for the expansion of the

         14  Madison Avenue BID. And we chose to wait and support

         15  this, because the tenancy in the building is a much

         16  better match for this BID and the services that this

         17  BID provides. Over 50 percent of the tenants in the

         18  Fuller Building are gallery owners and fashion show

         19  rooms, many of whom have already been participating

         20  with that in his programs, but when the specific

         21  expansion becomes official, I look forward to

         22  working with more of our tenants and getting them

         23  involved with the Madison Avenue BID and the

         24  marketing program because they will greatly benefit

         25  from them as Matt has already proven with many of
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          2  the events he has done over the years.

          3                 So, Vornado reality is in full

          4  support of this expansion, and I thank you for your

          5  time this morning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Any questions for the panelists?

          9                 No questions. Thank you very much. Is

         10  there anybody else who would like to speak either

         11  before or against the proposed Madison Avenue BID.

         12                 Okay, we're going to adjourn this

         13  hearing for the 30-day objection period, and we will

         14  take up the consideration of the Madison Avenue BID

         15  at a later meeting.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 Okay, Mr. Glatter, would you like to

         18  come back and testify on the increases on the

         19  proposed five BIDs -- proposed increases on the five

         20  BIDs in question?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We've also been

         24  joined by a couple of our colleagues since the last

         25  round of introductions. We've also lost a couple of
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          2  colleagues, but we have Council Member Lew Fidler

          3  from Brooklyn, Council Member Gale Brewer from

          4  Manhattan, Council Member Dennis Gallagher from

          5  Queens, and Council Member Albert Vann in the back

          6  from Brooklyn, and Council Member, sitting up in the

          7  big chair, Council Member Tracy Boyland from

          8  Brooklyn.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER GLATTER: Thank

         10  you, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 Yes, the Department of Small Business

         12  Services supports the City Council resolution

         13  setting the date, time and place for the public

         14  hearing concerning the increase in the amount to be

         15  expended in five Business Improvement Districts,

         16  BIDs.

         17                 The five BID's will arrange for the

         18  notification of a public hearing at least once in a

         19  local newspaper, having general circulation in the

         20  district. It will specify the time where and the

         21  place when the hearings will be held, and state the

         22  proposed amount to be expended annually.

         23                 In addition, they will mail notices

         24  to property owners providing them with information

         25  about the public hearing, as well as the reason for
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          2  the request for the increased assessment.

          3                 The five BIDs requesting increases of

          4  annual expenditures desire to further expand and

          5  reinforce the existing supplemental services

          6  currently provided by these Business Improvement

          7  Districts.

          8                 The BIDs wishing to increase the

          9  amount to be expended in Fiscal Year '04 are as

         10  follows: 34th Street to $8,198,500; 82nd Street in

         11  Queens to $187,000; Flatbush Avenue in Brooklyn, the

         12  $314,520, and 47th Street, which is the Diamond

         13  District, to $331,367; and last being Columbus

         14  Amsterdam in Manhattan, going to $201,600.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We have also been

         17  joined by Council Member Simcha Felder from

         18  Brooklyn.

         19                 Any questions about the proposed

         20  increases?

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 Pablo Zangerle from the Finance

         23  staff, Deputy Director for Revenue about the

         24  proposed budget modification.

         25                 Proceed.
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          2                 MR. ZANGERLE: Hi. My name is Pabo

          3  Zangerle, Deputy Director for Revenue in the Finance

          4  Division.

          5                 I'm here to talk about the Revenue

          6  Modification MN 4.

          7                 This revenue modification recognizes

          8  a net increase in Fiscal 2004 revenue of 1.476

          9  billion, representing the combined changes in the

         10  November Financial Plan modification, and the

         11  Preliminary Budget released this January.

         12                 The November Plan modification was in

         13  the amount of $694 million, and the January Plan

         14  modification to the revenue budget was $782 million.

         15                 The change in revenue does not

         16  include any new revenue changes that will be part of

         17  the Executive Budget that has now to be released on

         18  Monday.

         19                 All but 100 million of the additional

         20  revenue will be rolled into Fiscal 2005 to balance

         21  the Fiscal 2005 budget, and also to reduce the

         22  projected gap for Fiscal 2006.

         23                 The remaining 100 million will fund

         24  Fiscal 2004 pay-as-you-go capital spending for

         25  education that I understand is yet undefined.
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          2                 The expense budget modification MN 3

          3  that was passed in March also added 13.6 million to

          4  the budget stabilization account, bringing the

          5  balance in the budget stabilization account to

          6  $1.389 billion, which matches the figures contained

          7  in the Mayor's Financial Plan.

          8                 Of the increase in revenues, we saw

          9  an increase in tax revenue of $786 million. This is

         10  a result of a strengthening economy, especially

         11  profits on Wall Street, and a slight improving

         12  picture in employment.

         13                 In the miscellaneous revenue budget

         14  there was a net decrease of $8 million, and within

         15  that category there are some major shifts, the

         16  biggest one being delaying the airport rent

         17  settlement money of $200 million anticipated in

         18  Fiscal 2004 to 2005.

         19                 Additionally, there were a total of

         20  398 million in changes to unrestricted aid coming to

         21  New York City.

         22                 Included in that figure is new FEMA

         23  reimbursement money related to 9/11 for 122 million,

         24  and two items involving education aid for 197

         25  million, as well as State money for long-term mental
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          2  health care for 78 million that were projected to be

          3  received in Fiscal 2003, and instead will be

          4  received in Fiscal 2004.

          5                 And finally, there was an analysis

          6  done of the city's current liabilities, and OMB has

          7  projected that they will be able to reduce prior

          8  year payables in the amount of $300 million for

          9  Fiscal '04, and that would bring the total to 1.476

         10  billion.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you.

         12                 We've been joined by Councilwoman

         13  Helen Sears from Queens, and I believe Council

         14  Member Fidler had a question.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes, actually

         16  a few.

         17                 This is kind of overwhelming. Is this

         18  good news?

         19                 MR. ZANGERLE: This is great news. And

         20  this is great news that's been building up through

         21  the years.

         22                 It's important to understand that

         23  this money is not found as of now; this is money

         24  that has been identified by OMB in the Financial

         25  Plan changes in November and January, and now we're
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          2  kind of bringing it into the budget.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, what

          4  impact does this news have on the gap that we're

          5  facing for the next fiscal year?

          6                 MR. ZANGERLE: The amount of this

          7  money was identified by OMB, so what we're doing is

          8  taking half of the surplus and applying it to the

          9  '05 gap, which closes the gap, and you might

         10  remember in the January Plan presentation, there's

         11  another $574 million worth of items that also

         12  contribute to the closing of the '05 gap, and then

         13  another 695 of the surplus rolls will be forwarded

         14  to 2006 to reduce that gap from 2.7 to like 2.

         15  billion (sic) at this time.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And how much

         17  of this money has previously been counted toward

         18  closing the gap? And how much of this is new money

         19  that's closing the gap, in actual dollars?

         20                 MR. ZANGERLE: As I said, this is

         21  money that's been identified in the financial plan,

         22  and this is money that is contained in the January

         23  Plan presentation.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: All of it.

         25                 MR. ZANGERLE: All of it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, nothing is

          3  a surprise. That's actually kind of neutral news

          4  then?

          5                 MR. ZANGERLE: It's neutral news,

          6  except to the extent the money has come in.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

          8                 And what's our gap for next year now?

          9                 MR. ZANGERLE: The gap for next year

         10  would be -- well, the bottom line would be zero, but

         11  we do have an agency program -- you're talking about

         12  for next year?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Yes.

         14                 MR. ZANGERLE: Let me just make sure I

         15  get my numbers right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Projected gap.

         17                 MR. ZANGERLE: Well, with the agency

         18  program, for Fiscal 2005 the gap should be closed as

         19  $574 million of which there is $324 million agency

         20  program --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: By agency

         22  program you mean cuts?

         23                 MR. ZANGERLE: Cuts.

         24                 Then we have federal actions from the

         25  menu of 300 million, state actions for 400 million,
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          2  and those items are offset by the Mayor's proposed

          3  tax rebate of $250 million, the 400 per residential

          4  homeowner, and an additional $200 million that will

          5  be going to pay as you go capital in education. And

          6  that will zero out the gap for 2005.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Now, just a

          8  couple of questions about some of the, you know, the

          9  big numbers in the exhibits.

         10                 I see that Star Aid is going up 7.7

         11  million; what accounts for that surprise?

         12                 MR. ZANGERLE: I believe that's a

         13  function of the general strengthen personal income

         14  tax, because part of it is based on, the Star Aid --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: The Star Aid

         16  property tax.

         17                 MR. ZANGERLE: Well, Star is both

         18  property tax and personal income tax, and if I'm not

         19  mistaken, what we're seeing there is strength in the

         20  personal income tax, which is also increasing the

         21  Star Aid.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Right, because

         23  the line says "Star Aid property tax 7.7 million,"

         24  that's why I'm a little puzzled. I was just

         25  wondering whether or not it might be accounted for
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          2  by the fact the Department of Finance, in their bold

          3  effort to enforce the absentee landlord tax

          4  discovered people that might be eligible for Star

          5  Aid that hadn't been receiving it.

          6                 MR. ZANGERLE: Perhaps Nadine Felton

          7  can illuminate on that point.

          8                 MS. FELTON: Yes, there was a slight

          9  increase in the Star Aid as a result of that.

         10  Because all Star Aid, as you know, is state money

         11  that reimburses the City. And as a result of the

         12  outreach effort, the Department of Finance added

         13  about 60, almost 70,000 new homeowners receiving

         14  Star in Fiscal '05. But this was also an increase

         15  for the '04, this is an increase in the '04.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, Ms. Felton,

         17  would you just state your name for the record?

         18                 MS. FELTON: I'm Nadine Felton,

         19  Assistant Director of the Revenue Finance Division.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm very glad

         21  to hear that there was some benefit to the absentee

         22  landlord surcharge after all.

         23                 Then there's a $10 million increase

         24  in cigarette tax. How did that come about?

         25                 MR. ZANGERLE: I just assume that's a
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          2  baseline increase in the projection of cigarette

          3  sales, but it has nothing to do with the increase in

          4  the tax that happened two years ago when it

          5  happened.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Well,

          7  everything is relevant to that in some way. I'm just

          8  kind of curious because, you know, we've heard from

          9  people that the increase that we imposed on the sale

         10  of cigarettes was going to result in a net decrease

         11  in collection of cigarette tax because everyone was

         12  going to buy their cigarettes black market.

         13                 Do we know what figures underlie this

         14  increase?

         15                 MR. ZANGERLE: Somewhat off the top of

         16  my head I remember that originally when we did the

         17  cigarette tax increase we thought there would be a

         18  much more drastic decrease in cigarette consumption.

         19                 But if my memory serves me correctly,

         20  from those estimates, two times they've been kind of

         21  increased incrementally to reflect the fact the

         22  decrease in cigarette sales was not as profound as

         23  originally anticipated.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I would just

         25  commend to my colleagues, there's a little better
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          2  enforcement of the sale of cigarettes on the

          3  reservations that this number would probably triple.

          4                 There's a huge line here for a

          5  decrease that, frankly, I don't even know what it

          6  is. What is pilots that is losing $61 million? What

          7  is that?

          8                 MR. ZANGERLE: Okay, pilots, the

          9  change in the pilots payments is mostly driven by

         10  changes relating to Battery Park City.

         11                 Essentially as part of the package of

         12  the State for the Fiscal '04 budgetary relief, was

         13  authorization for Battery Park City to restructure

         14  their outstanding debt that was to provide $150

         15  million to the City in Fiscal '04.

         16                 After the various transactions took

         17  place to effectuate the restructuring, it turned out

         18  that the benefits of the restructuring would not all

         19  happen in fiscal '04, but would actually be spread

         20  out over several years.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So, we're

         22  still going to see the benefit, just not in that

         23  fiscal year?

         24                 MR. ZANGERLE: Exactly. So essentially

         25  they have to take '04 down to essentially recognize
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          2  that some of the benefits are coming out in the

          3  outyears, on a net basis I believe that we're going

          4  to receive more than the originally anticipated $150

          5  million, so it's a net gain to the City.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: That's good.

          7                 On the next page there are two items

          8  that also show decreases, and I'm just curious how

          9  it happened. License for a million and a half and

         10  franchises for over 13 million; what happened in

         11  those two categories?

         12                 MR. ZANGERLE: Okay, for licenses,

         13  actually the licenses complies of many, many, many

         14  licenses, so a decrease of $1.5 million would be a

         15  combination of many ups and downs that yield a net

         16  loss of the 1.5, but it's from a base of several

         17  hundred million dollars, so the change itself is not

         18  that large.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And

         20  franchises?

         21                 MR. ZANGERLE: There's one item that

         22  dominates the changes in franchises, and that has to

         23  deal with a court settlement involving how cable

         24  franchises have to pay for certain rights of way,

         25  and I believe there was a court case in Yonkers or
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          2  White Plains, I forget, that said that you couldn't

          3  exempt certain carriers from paying certain fees,

          4  and not exempt all carriers, and that affected the

          5  City in the sense that I believe Verizon was not

          6  paying -- per their contract did not have to pay for

          7  certain rights of way, where other smaller carriers

          8  did, and the decision was made that the smaller

          9  carriers would also not have to pay certain rights

         10  of way fees, could get them in the same on-line with

         11  Verizon, and that's what the loss reflects.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And I guess

         13  the last question I have is an almost $10 million

         14  decrease in PVB fines, which I think would probably

         15  absolutely shock my constituents, because they are

         16  giving out those tickets like they're going out of

         17  style. Why is that?

         18                 MR. ZANGERLE: It's my understanding

         19  it's a baselined adjustment based on less ticket

         20  issuance than planned.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: You mean it

         22  actually projected such a large increase in parking

         23  tickets in this City that they're getting 10 million

         24  less despite --

         25                 What I would think, if you walked out
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          2  and asked people anecdotally are they giving more

          3  tickets this year than last year and people would

          4  shake their head so hard that it would fall off

          5  their neck.

          6                 So, just it's coming in less because

          7  they're not doing as much as they were beating

          8  people up to go out there and give?

          9                 MR. ZANGERLE: Again, the 10 million

         10  change is relatively small change compared to the

         11  base of over 500 million.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you. You

         13  really get an A for being well prepared.

         14                 MR. ZANGERLE: Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: While we're

         16  waiting for a quorum to vote, we're going to discuss

         17  the Section 202 supportive housing for the elderly,

         18  which is a Land Use referral in Council Member

         19  Albert Vann's district.

         20                 Council Member Vann, do you want to

         21  just briefly state your position on the project?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Briefly, I

         23  support it.

         24                 But I would say one other word, is

         25  that housing for senior citizens in my district is
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          2  in great, great demand, and I'm gratified on the

          3  partnership between HUD and HPD have come together

          4  to provide supportive housing.

          5                 I'd like to say a word or two for

          6  HPD. They've been very cooperative in trying to meet

          7  the needs of low-income people throughout the City

          8  in particular in the Central Brooklyn area, and I

          9  thank them for their sensitivity and cooperation in

         10  working to make sure this project will come into

         11  being.

         12                 Mr. Chairman, I fully support this

         13  project.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         15  Council member.

         16                 Council Member Comrie and Council

         17  Member Nelson, we're going to call the roll on all

         18  the items.

         19                 The Land Use referral, the budget

         20  modification and the resolution on increasing the

         21  fees for the five BIDs.

         22                 Call the roll.

         23                 MR. CARAS: Weprin.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Aye.

         25                 MR. CARAS: Boyland.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Aye.

          3                 MR. CARAS: Nelson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Aye.

          5                 MR. CARAS: Perkins.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Perkins; aye.

          8                 MR. CARAS: Quinn.

          9                 Quinn.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         11                 MR. CARAS: Brewer.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye.

         13                 MR. CARAS: Comrie.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I want to

         15  commend Councilman Fidler on his excellent review,

         16  and being the gate keeper for these issues. As I had

         17  two other meetings, I was impressed when I came up

         18  to hear that he is being very fastidious in his

         19  review of our finances and I wanted to commend him

         20  for that; and keep it up, Lew.

         21                 I vote aye on all.

         22                 MR. CARAS: Felder.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Pass.

         24                 MR. CARAS: Fidler.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye.
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          2                 MR. CARAS: Gioia.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I vote yes.

          4                 MR. CARAS: Sears.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

          6                 MR. CARAS: Vann.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yes on all.

          8                 MR. CARAS: Gallagher.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Aye.

         10                 MR. CARAS: Oddo.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         12                 MR. CARAS: Felder.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         14                 MR. CARAS: By a vote of 14 in the

         15  affirmative, none in the negative, the items are

         16  adopted.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: All right, I'm

         18  going to keep the roll open for a reasonable period

         19  of time to allow those members that are floating

         20  around the building to vote.

         21                 Other than that, we're adjourned.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Rules

         23  Committee meeting right here, right now.

         24                 Anybody on Rules, we can come in. The

         25  candidate has been waiting patiently.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Please sign the

          3  Committee vote sheets.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 11:41 a.m.)

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            36

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 21st day of April 2004.
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